

## **City of Kingston**

# **Post Secondary Working Group Meeting Notes**

April 25, 2024 3:00 p.m.

Kingston City Hall, 216 Ontario Street - Stationview Room (First Floor)

Present: Conny Glenn

Vincent Cinanni Craig Leroux Alexander Legnini

Tony Hu Victoria Mills

Absent: Ross McMillan

**Emily Cloutier** 

Administration Staff

Present:

Holly Wilson, Manager of Government Relations

Amanda Nugara, Coordinator, Council Support and Community

Relations

Visitors: Shelley Aylesworth-Spink, VP Student Success, SLC

James Barr: Manager of Development Approvals, City of

Kingston

Dreyden George: Incoming Commissioner of External Affairs Adam King: Off-Campus Living Advisor, Queen's University Julian Mollot-Hill: Commissioner of External Affairs, Queen's

AMS

Krystal O'Farrell: Housing Coordinator, St. Lawrence College Ruth Osunde: Incoming VP University Affairs, Queen's AMS Lori Velkova: Housing Program Administrator, City of Kingston

Leah Wales: Executive Director (Housing and Ancillary

Services), Queen's University

1. Call to Order & Approve Agenda

Unanimously passed.

- 2. Approval of the February PSWG Meeting Minutes
  - 1. Review of the Priorities for the PSWG

Unanimously passed.

#### 3. New Business

#### 1. Discussion on Fall Student Events & Activities

- Queen's / SLC led initiatives and activities
  - Discussion surrounding city run activities in collaboration with Tourism Kingston
  - 2. Example from City of Ottawa: Tailgate Party
  - 3. Revive the Reunion Party. Would be more popular if alcohol was permitted (wrist bands identifying who is 19+)
  - 4. Utilizing Richardson Stadium as a controlled event location (Kingston Police would potentially support).
- Potential collaboration between Tourism Kingston and Queen's on event(s).
  - 1. Events should be comprehensive and not separate.
  - 2. Strategies about building event awareness and messaging, including effective marketing.
  - 3. Street festival vibes
  - 4. Pop up events at various park locations
  - Graduate and/or mature students tend to avoid Aberdeen, therefore smaller scale events that are spread out should be considered.

## 2. Housing - Changes and Opportunities Related to Student Housing

- Guest speaker James Barr, Manager of Development Approvals, City of Kingston
  - 1. Major projects in the area include replacing joint sewers via new construction. This requires a 10-year timeline.
  - 2. Kingston has the lowest vacancy rate amongst big cities in Ontario. To tackle this issue, the City is looking to expedite planning approvals and make construction easier. All through the new legislative changes to the *Planning Act*.
  - 3. Earl, University, Division, Johnson area is being redeveloped to accommodate approximately 1,500 new units.
  - 4. The City is revamping its Official Plan over the next 2 years and is seeking public input

- 5. This plan will include intergovernmental investments to support housing for colleges and universities.
- Guest speaker Lori Velkova, Housing Program Administrator, City of Kingston
  - 1. Affordable units in Kingston go extremely fast and do not follow the school years which presents a major challenge to students.
  - 2. International students don't always qualify for affordable housing because of their citizenship status, and lack of Permanent Residency Card.
  - 3. Trying to eliminate the stigma of social assistance. It's there to help for a reason.
  - 4. Students may not feel like they are part of the community enough to consider social assistance.
- Guest speaker Leah Wales, Executive Director (Housing and Ancillary Services), Queen's University.
  - 1. Major barrier to increased on/off campus housing is funding.
  - 2. Queen's University debt capacity needs to be preserved for academic capacity at this time.
  - 3. Queen's has hired a consultant to look for other partnerships within the private sector.
- Guest speaker Shelley Aylesworth-Spink, VP Student Success, SLC
  - Colleges are relatively new in the housing game. SLC approach must be include a tri-campus model (Kingston, Brockville, Cornwall)
  - 2. International students are more open to and prefer room sharing.
  - Concerned that international students will live in the lowest and cheapest rate of housing which is a concern due to lack of landlord accountability and potential scams.
  - 4. Federal government changes to the cap on International Student intake has created a challenge. Lack of certainty on new Canadian Immigration policy.
  - 5. Closure of the public and private partnership in Toronto has also created and added challenge.
  - 6. Considerations are being given to modular and fast construction housing as the technology is improving within these industries.

7. Helping new students navigate the housing market (lease review, predeparture checklists).

### 4. Other Business

- Round table
  - Increase in scams targeted at domestic and international students (rental, employment, wage theft, illegal unsafe working conditions).
    Potential to loop in Kingston Police and By-Law Enforcement to the discussion table.
  - Utilizing spaces that already exists in terms of housing and community spaces for students.
  - Spaces Shared Program: A space where compatible Students and older adult Hosts interested in homesharing can match with each other (<u>SpacesShared - Homeshare Evolved</u>)
    - Could this be used for roommate matching for students?
- Introduction of new student government representatives from Queen's and SLC
  - Ruth Osunde: Incoming Vice President of University Affairs
  - Dreyden George: Incoming Commissioner of External Affairs
- Queen's administration PSWG replacement Jenna Donelson
- Meetings for the remainder of the year (Amanda will place holds in everyone's calendars):
  - o August 8, 2024 SLC
  - o Nov 21, 2024 Queen's

### 5. Communications

# 6. Adjournment

The meeting adjourned at 5:00 p.m. by Councillor Conny Glenn